
TOWN COUNCIL 
  

STAFF REPORT 
Department of Growth Management 
 

MEETING DATE: August 9, 2016 

PROJECT: Workshop on Mobile Vendors 

PROJECT MANAGER: 
Kevin P. Icard, AICP  

Planning & Community Development Manager 
 

RECOMMENDATION:   

Direct Town staff on whether or not the Town should consider revisions to the current 
Mobile Vending Ordinance as outlined. This is one of the strategic initiatives of the 

Town’s Strategic Action Plan 2017-18. The goal is to ensure that the current Mobile 
Vendor Ordinance is meeting the needs of the Town and is following a best practice 

model for users and staff.  
 
BACKGROUND:   

Staff is currently researching other communities in the region on what their standards 
are for allowing mobile vendors – (including Food Trucks & Carts). Attachment #1 

provides an overview of the Town’s current checklist for a Mobile Food Truck (Article III. 
Soliciting – Section 6-75 through 6-77) which includes the following forms and approvals 
from other agencies: 

 Business License Application 

 Authorization form for Solicitation 

 Background Check Authorization Form 

 SC Retail License 

 DHEC Permit Inspection Report 

 Landowners written approval 

 Copy of Liability Insurance 

 Map of site where truck will be set up 

 Picture of site setup 

Attachment #2 indicates the business license requirements for Ice Cream Trucks 

(Section 6-75 through 6-77) and Non-Motorized Vendors (Section 7-71 through 7-82). 

Ice Cream Truck: 

 New Business License Application 

 Home Occupation (if applicant lives in the Town limits) 

 Background Check 

 DHEC Certification 

 Copy of Vehicle Insurance 

 Pictures of Vehicle (all four sides) 

 Signed copy of Town of Bluffton Ordinance 2014-13 Section 6-75 through 6-77 by 

applicant 



 

Non-Motorized Vendor: 

 New Business License Application 

 Home Occupation Application (if Applicant lives in the Town limits) 

 Copy of Valid Driver’s license of Applicant and all employees 

 Copy of Vehicle Insurance (minimum coverage $100,000 bpdliy injury one person 

and $300,000 for more than one person in sane accident & $25,000 for property 

damage) 

 Picture of Vehicle 

 Certificate of completion of a Bluffton History Class (Heyward House) 

 Tour route pre-approved by the Chief of Police of Bluffton 

 Signed copy of Town of Bluffton Ordinance 2014-13 Section 7-71 through 7-82 by 

applicant  

 

Attachment #3 is a table created by staff showing other communities throughout the 
state and how each one addresses mobile vendors.  

 

Questions for Town Council to consider: 

 Do you want to make any changes to the current ordinance?  

o If so here are some questions to consider. 

 

Staff Generated Questions to Consider 

o Currently, per Section 6-77-b.5 of the Town’s code, there are three types of 

products that can be sold via a mobile vendor; Type A Prepared Food, Type 

B Agricultural/Seafood Products, & Type C Ice Cream. Does Town Council 

want staff to include any other types of mobile vendors? 

 If yes, this could include retail uses (clothing), publications, mobile 

vending machines (snacks, sodas), etc. 

 

o Should we allow food trucks or carts on public property? 

 If yes – what are the provisions, i.e. Special Events (festivals, 

parades, etc.)? 

 

o Should we allow food trucks or carts on private property? 

 If yes – some items to consider;  

- written consent from property owner 

- where on the property (paved surface or grass) 

- signage requirements 

- should extra parking be provided to accommodate patrons 

- which zoning districts would they be permitted? 

 

o If we expand the current ordinance to allow motorized food trucks, do we 

limit the number of permits or limit the distance from the front door of legal 

establishments? 



 

 If yes – what is an appropriate amount of permits to be issued at any 

one time, what is a sufficient distance from legal establishments 200 

feet, 300 feet, etc. 

 

o Should staff research and determine if a Food Truck Overlay Zone should 

be designated? 

 If yes – where are some appropriate locations? 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 
 
1. Town of Bluffton – Mobile Food Truck Checklist and Requirements 

2. Town of Bluffton – Business License Requirements 
3. Regional Mobile Vendors 
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Ice Cream Truck – Business License Requirements 

Mobile Vendor Ordinance 2014-13 Section 6-75 through 6-77 

 New Business License Application 

 Home Occupation Application (if Applicant lives in the Town limits) 

 Background Check 

 DHEC Certification  

 Copy of Vehicle Insurance 

 Pictures of Vehicle (all four sides) 

 Signed copy of Town of Bluffton Ordinance 2014-13 Section 6-75 through 6-77 by 

applicant 

Type C License – Provisional License 

Prepackaged frozen dairy or frozen water-based food product only 

Provisional License is valid for 3 months from the date of issuance 

Business license fee $50.00 

Limited to Old Town Area – Calhoun St. north of Bridge Street – Neighborhood Core HD 

Vehicle must be equipped with a flashing amber dome light and front and rear warning lights 

“Watch for Children” must be on all four sides of the vehicle, in a minimum of “4 letters 

Litter Receptacle must be available for patrons’ use 

Licensee shall not sell non-food novelty items, noisemakers or toys 

No more than 2 Mobile Vending Units may be licensed by the same operating entity 

Town Manager may cancel at any time for any reason 
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Non-Motorized – Business License Requirements 

Ordinance 2014-13 Section 7-71 through 7-82 

 New Business License Application 

 Home Occupation Application (if Applicant lives in the Town limits) 

 Copy of Valid Driver’s license of Applicant and all employees 

 Copy of Vehicle Insurance (minimum coverage $100,000.00 bodily injury one person and 

$300,000.00 for more than one person in same accident, $25,000 for property damage) 

 Pictures of Vehicle  

 Certificate of completion of a Bluffton History Class (Heyward House) 

 Tour route pre-approved by the Chief of Police of Bluffton 

 Signed copy of Town of Bluffton Ordinance 2014-13 Section 7-71 through 7-82 by 

applicant 

Annual Business license fee $50.00 

Hours of Operation 8:30 am to 10:00 pm 

The name of the tour company shall be clearly displayed and visible on each vehicle 

Each vehicle shall have lamps or reflectors in operation 30 minutes after sundown in accordance 

with South Carolina Code 56-5-4650 

No more than two (2) non-motorized companies shall be licensed to operate in the Town 

The Town may limit the number of vehicles that tour companies may be operating at any one 

time. 

It is unlawful to consume or transport alcoholic beverages aboard any non-motorized tour vehicle 

Town Manager may temporarily suspend the non-motorized business license for violation of any 

provisions of Ordinance 2014-13 Section 7-71 through 7-82.  The business company may appeal 

any such suspension to Town Council provided a written appeal has been submitted to the Town 

Manager within seven (7) days of the Town Manager’s decision. 
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REGIONAL MOBILE VENDORS 

August 1, 2016 

Town of Bluffton - Department of Growth Management  

Jurisdiction Location 
Parking & 

Access 
Hours of 
Operation 

Taxes/Permit Fees Type of Vehicle Other 

Bluffton  Limited locations in 
Old Town Area 

 Written 

permission 
from 

property 
owner 

 Within ROW 

with Town 
Manager 

approval 
 Can’t block 

access 

 Ice Cream 

Truck is only 
one listed; 
May-Sept. 

10:45am-
7:00pm & 

all other 
months 
10:45am-

5pm 

 Permit fee $50/3 
months. Expires 
every 3 months and 

can be renewed or 
cancelled 

 Food Vendor must be 

non-motorized 
(trailer) & can’t be 
attached to vehicle 

during operation 
 Ice Cream Truck 

must have flashing 
lights and “Watch for 
Children” signs on all 

four sides 

 Food vendor must be associated with 
food preparation facility that is 

located in the Town of Bluffton 

Beaufort 

County 
 Specific zoning 

districts  

 Written 

permission 
from 
property 

owner, can’t 
block 

existing 
businesses or 
activities 

 Not listed, 

however, 
can’t be 
parked 

overnight & 
can’t be at 

same 
location 
weekly 

 Annual Permit 
issued by Zoning 
Dept. 

 Collect & remit 
Hospitality Taxes, 

same as other food 
service enterprises 

 Permits motorized 
vehicles 

 Must provide picture 
of unit 

 DHEC Approval, must show suitable 

access to restroom for employees 

Savannah 
(Draft) 

 Private property, 

can’t conduct in 
ROW unless it’s 
part of a special 

event recognized 
by the City with 

pre-approval 
 Only in specific 

zoning districts 

 Written 
consent from 
the property 

owner, 

 No specific 
time is listed 

 Permit issued 
annually 

 Must provide photo 
of truck, make, 
model, license plate 

number 

 Food trucks can’t conduct business 
within 200 feet as measure from the 
main entrance of a brick and mortar 

restaurant 

Greenville, 
SC 

 Specific zoning 
districts 

 

 Written 

consent from 
property 
owner 

 Until 10 pm, 

but can 
receive 
permit to 

 Yearly decal $500 

 Permits motorized 

vehicles 
 Must provide picture 

of vehicle, and the 

 Food Trucks can’t conduct business 

within 250 feet from the door of an 
eating establishment, unless a waiver 
is signed by the lawful business 
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REGIONAL MOBILE VENDORS 

August 1, 2016 

Town of Bluffton - Department of Growth Management  

operate till 1 
am 

owner(s) taken 
within the past 30 

days 

 Must provide own litter receptacle 

Hilton 

Head 
Island 

 Mobile vending is 
not specifically 
licensed 

 Peddlers, solicitors, 
canvassers, door-

to-door sales, 
direct retail sales of 
merchandise and 

promoters of 
arts/crafts fairs are 

licensed 

 N/A  N/A  N/A  N/A  N/A 

Port Royal 
 Mobile vending is 

not specifically 
licensed 

 N/A  N/A  N/A  N/A  N/A 

Columbia 

 Public ROW 
 In established 

vending district est. 
by city council 

 Can’t be 
located 
within 10’ of 

any entrance 
& 25’ of any 

bus stop 

 Not allowed 
between 

11pm and 
6am 

 Permit issued by city 
council after public 

hearing 

 Prohibits motorized 
vehicles 

 Permits sidewalk 
vending 

 Can’t be within 50’ of business selling 
same merchandise 

 Requires public hearing with posting 
a notice w/in 100; of proposed 

location 15 days prior to meeting 
 Items must remain in cart 
 Can’t operate as ‘drive-thru’ 

Charleston  Old and Historic 
District 

 Can’t be 

located 
within 50’ of 
a church or 

place of 
worship 

  

 City council issues 
franchise license to 

17 designated 
spaces to the 
highest bidder 

 Permits motorized 
vehicles by peddlers 

 Focus is on tour companies 
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